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FELONY INFORMATION

TEE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES:

COUNT_1
THE MONEY LAUNDERING CONSPIRACY

A. INTRODUCTION

CHESTER CLINTON (C.C.) BAIRD, JR., conspired and agreed with
Patsy Baird, who 1s named but not charged herein, to engage in

mernetary transactions 1in criminally derived property of a value

]

greater than $10,000.00 knowing that the property involved was

[

derived IZrom the specified unlawful activity, as defined in Title
18, United States Code, Sections 1956{c} (7) (A) and 1961(1l}, of
mail Iraud.

The mail fraud was accomplished when payments for dogs and
cats were made through the United States mail and by private and
commercial interstate carriers by research facilities te C.C.

BAIRD, JR., d/b/a Martin Creek Kennels.




These payments were induced by false and Ifrauculen
revresentarions and certifications made and causead o ke made by
C.C. BAIRD, JR. and Patsy Baird to the g¢ffect that the decgs an
cats scld to the research facilities were acguired In compliance
with the Animal Welfare Act (AWA) Title 7, United States Code

(U.s8.C.) $§$ 2131 - 2159, when in fact C.C. BAIRD, JR. and Patsy

Baird knew that they were not so acguired.

B. BACKGROUND

At all times marterial to this Information:

The United States Department of Agriculture [USDA] was

-

an agency of the United States government.

The AWA existed to effectuate the intent of Congress

g

Lo
fay dinsure that animals intended for use in research
facilities or for exhibition purposes or for use as
prets are provided humane care and treatment;
{(b) assure the humane treatment of animals during

transportation in commrerce; and

1

protect the owners of animals from the thef:r of their
animals by preventing the sale or use of animals which

have been stolern.




3. Thz Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service [USDA-

— +
PO

N

tat

n

s Cerartm

(o

APHIS] was a sub-agency of the United

ricultuare charged with enforcement of thns AWA and 9 Code of

A

19

Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) §§ 1.1 - 4.11, the reguiaticns

Thnaereundar;

Title 7, United States Code, Section 2134 stzted that

d

no dealer shall sell or offer to sell or transport or offer for
transportation, in commerce, to any ressarch facility, unless and
until such dealer shall have obtained a license from the
Secretary of Agriculture and such license shall not have been

suspended or revoked.

5. C.C. BAIRD, JR. and Patsy Baird (the BAIRDS) were

huskband and wife.

6. C.C. BAIRD, JR. d/b/a Martin Creek Kennels, and Patsy
Baird, d/b/a Pat’s Pine Tree Farm, were licensed as USDA Class B
and Class A dealers, respectively, with license numbers 71-B-0108

and 71-A-0688, pursuant to Section 2.1(a)(l) 9 C.F.R., subpart A.

T The BAIRDS operated in commerce for compensation and
sroilt to breed, transpcrt, buy, sell, and negotiate the purchase
and sale of dcgs and cats for research and teaching purposes.

3
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dealer fa-ility, and an avoroximate 53 cat and 30 dog Class A
breedirg facility. The facilities were ccllocated at 441 Mar=zi

Creox Road in Williford, Sharp County, Arkansas.

g. In Decenmper, 2002, C€.C. BAIRD, JR., d/b/a Martin Creek
Kennels, certifled to USDA-APHIS, on his Application for License,
Annual License RBenewaX, fcor his Class B dealer's license, that in

calendar year 2001 he purchased approximately 2,500 animals and

so.d approximately 2,450 animals te research faciiities.

G, C.C. BAIRD, d/b/a Martin Creek Kennels, and Patsy
Baird purchased or otherwlse acquired dogs and cats at four
primary locations:
ta; 441 Martin Creek Road, Williford, Sharp County,
Arkansas;
(o} Ripley Trade and Sale Days, a flea market located in or

near Ripliey, Mississippi;

(]

{ci Trade Day, a flea market in or rear Poplar BIluff,
Missouri; and
{d)  Docg Sale/Trade Day, a flea market in or near Joplin,

¥issouri.



.0, The facilities to whor C.C. BAIRD, JR., d/b/a Martin
Creek Kennels, sold dogs and cats included urniversities,
communizy colleges, pharmaceutical companies, teaching and other

nospltals, medical foundations, laboratories, lab animai rescurc

cernters, and animal health corporations.

11. Specifically, in calendar year 2001, C€.C. BAIRD, JR.,
d/b/a Martin Creek Kennels, conspired and agreed with Patsy
Baird tc sell ©o and receive payments totaling approximately
$584,000.00 for dog and cats, from AgResearch Consultants, Inc.;
Allegheny Singer Research Institute; Biomedical Enterprises,

Inc.; Cathellic HealthCare West; CAVL, Inc.; Cheri-Hill Kennel and
Supply; Colorado State University; Zast Tennessee State
Universizy; Jdefferson College, Missouri; Loyola University
Chicage - Stritch School of Medicine; Masonic Medical Research
Labecratory; Mississippil State University; Morehouse School of
Medicine; Mount Ida College; Northeasterrn Ohio University College

of Medicine; ARlton Ochsner Medical rocundation: Professional
lLabcratory and Research Services; Rilicerca - Biosciences, LLC.;
Southwest 3ic-Labs, Inc.; University of Florida; University of
Nebraska Medical Center; State of Wes: Virginia; Stillmeadow,
Inc.; TRS Lans, Inc.; Tulane Educationzl Fund - Tulare

University; University oi Arkansas for Medical Sciences:

University of Illinois; University of Miami -~ School of Medicine;




Urniversizy of Mississippil Medical Center; Jniversity of Missouri

[

South Alabama
- Zoilage of Medicine; University of Tennessse - Office of
Research; University of Texas dealth Science Center; Universily
cf Virginia; Virginia Cemmonwealih University; West Virginia
Medical Corpora+-ion; West Virginia University Foundation, Inc.;

and Young Veterinary Research Services.

12. The AWA and regulations  thersunder distinguished

petween the procurement of purpese-kred dog and cats {non-random

source dogs and cats) and random_ seource animals for use in

research. Purpcse-bred animals are animals bred specifically for
use in research. Non purpose-bred animals are referred to as
random source animals. The AWA and recgulations thereunder made

t a misdemeanor for a Class B dealer to obtaln any deg or cat
other than a purpose-pred dog or cat, i1.e., a dog or cat bred and
raisaed by an individual on thelir own premises, or a random source
dog or cat Irom other Licensed dealers, or from animal pounds and

humane scclieties.

13. Bunchers were individuals whe collected [bunched

rogether! random scurce dcgs and cats which were rot bred and

‘9 C.F.R § 2.132.

[ap



raised on their cwn premises for the purpese ¢f selling them to
cthar bunchers, (lass B dealers, and other entlitlies ragulated

under The AWA. Under the AWA and regulations, bunchers were

prohibited sources oI dogs and cats.

l14. Bunchers obtained prohinited random socurce dogs and

iy

cats in a number of different ways, including but not limited to
purchasing dogs and cats at flea and other marxets; picking up
dogs and cazts running loose; responding to "free to good home™
advertissments and misrepresenting their intentions; and stealing

and causing to be stolen pets from fenced and unfenced yards and

from urattended wvehicles.

15. C(Class B dealers such as the BAIRDS were required by the
AWA and regu’ations thereunder’ to make and keep records which
fully and correctly discleosed:

{al the name and address of the person from whom a dog or
cat was acqguired, whether or nct the person was
reguired to be licensed or registered under the AWA;

() the USDA license or regilstration number of the person,

:f applicable;

‘g C.F.R. § 2.75

-J
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license number and state ci the pesrson;
the date a dog or cat was acquired;

official USDA tag numder or tattoo assigned to the

[
gl

dog or cat as the AWA and regulations thereunder?;
a descripticon of each dog or cat, to inciude:

iy the species and breed or type;

{2 the sex;

{3) tne date of birth or approximate age; and

{4} the color and any distinctive markings.

The AWA and regulations thereunder® stated that a Class

5 dezler could not sell, provide, or make avallable to any person

a random_source dog or cat unless the Class B dealer provided the

recigient of the dog or cat with a cerziIfication that contained,

nter alia,

fal a

description of each dog or cat being sold, provided,

or made avallable;

9 C.F.R. §§ 2.50 - 2.55.

*Title 7, United States Code, Section 2158(b) and 9 C.F.R.

§ 2.133(b).



The name and address of the perscn,
wWas ;

r which the dog or cat

=R
-_—F

.

ead

the date the dealer acquired e dog or cat Ifrom

i
oy
[

“he parson, pound, or shelter.
as well as dealers, were

ilities,

Tac:z

7.
pronibited by the AWA and regulations thereunder® from buying,
transporting, or

using for research,

aos

selling,

exhibiting,
offering for transpertation, any stolen animal.

18. Resesarch facilities which acquired any random source
dog or cat from a Class B dealer were reguired by the AWA and

regulations thereunder to obtain the certification described in
maintain and make

and was required to keep,

1t above,

paragraoh
for USDA-APHIS inspection the original for at least

avallable
vears following disposition of the dog or cat.

thres (3}

The AWA and regulations thereunder® provided that any

purpose-bred,

13.
person whe sold 25 or more dogs and/or cats per year which were
(1.e. or nonrandom

nd raised on his premises

ALl

porn

"9 C.F.R. § 2.60,
‘9 C.F.R. § 2.1(a) (3) (iv).



source <ocgs and cats! for research, teaching, cr zesting

»ch facilizy, had to cktain 2 USDA Class

DUrpcses, or To any r2szareh
A License
20. The AWA and regulaticns thereunder® reguired that any

ve dog or cat acguired by a Class B dealer be held for a period
of not less than Zive (5) full days, not including the day of
aoquisition, after acquiring the dog cr ¢3t, except that any dog
or cat acquired from a private or corntract animal pound or
shelter was requlred 7o be held by the Class B dealer for a

period of not less than ten (10} full days, not including the day

0f acguisiticn.

cC. THE SPECIFIED UNLAWFUL ACTIVITY

It was a part of the mail fraud scneme constituting the
sepecified unlawful activity herein that C.C. BAIRD, JR. d/b/a
Martin Creek Kennels, and Patsy Baird <nowingly and

intentionally:

1. received random source dogs and cats from prohibited

sources, namaly persons [bunchers] who had not bred and raised

‘9 C.F.R, 2.1(a)(1).
‘9 C.F.R. § 2.101.

10




cets on thelir own premises, in viglaticnn of 9 C.F.R.

Q
L
t
C
]

§§ 2.60 znd 2.132, ard contrary to Title 7, United States Code,

Section 2131.

2. repared false and fictiticus paper and electronic

o

acquisition records intended to deceive and designed to:

represent random source dogs and cats frem

-
L

{3l m

prohibited sources, i.e. bunchers, as nonrandom source,

purpocse-bred dogs and cats;

fictitiously conceal threugh the use of straw men the

o

true source of the purported nonrandom source dogs and

cats, wnich in fact were cbtained from bunchers, in
order to make it appear that Zhe purported nonrandom
sources of dogs and cats each sold fewer than 25

purported nonrandom scurce dogs and cats per year and

tnerefore were eligible for the licensing exemption set
forth in the AWA and regulations thereunder?;
specifically, the BAIRDS used and caused to be used the
nanes and other required identifying data of wives,
sons, daughters, girlfriends, mothers, fathers, other
relatlves, neighbors and friends of bunchers as straw

men to prevent any one unlicenced source from

g C.F.R. § 2.1(a) (3) (iv).



appsarirg In tne BAIRDS' acguisltlion reccras to have

lendar yzar; and

fu
6]

@]

szld more than 25 dogs and cats 1n a

'cl  falsely backdated and caused to be tacxkdated the date
cf acquisition of dogs and ceats in order to defeat the
holding period reguired by the AWA and regulations
thereunder-’ so that dogs and cats could be soid and
shipped sconer =Zo facilities; arnd to obfuscate the date
of acquisition of any dog or cat matching the

description of a lost, stolen, or missing pet.
I g F

3. delivered and caused to be delivered to research
facilities dogs and cats wnhich had been obtained from prohibited

randamrm socurces, or bunchers, and which had net been held for the

requirea holding period, all in vicolation of the AWA and
ragulations thereunder;

. in order to obzaln payment for dogs and cats from
Fay

[N

researcn facilities, certified and caused to be certified, as

reguired by the AWA and regulations thereunder-, that dogs and

cats delivered by C€.C. BAIRD, JR. d/b/a Martin Creek Kennels

“9 C.F.R. § 2.101(a).
9 C.F.R. § 2.133(b) (1)-(5) and (6) (£).

12



acguired orn dazes which satisiied the holding pericd

o

requirements of the AWA and ragulations thereunder—,
whan in fact the BAIRDS then well Xnew that the

aczquisiticn dates were fictitious; and

(D) “rom nonrandom sources, when in fact the BAIRDS thnen

well knew that the dogs and cats nhad been acguired from
prohibited sources, or bunchers; and

{c) were nonrandom source dogs and cats acguired from

pversons meeting the under 25 dog and cat exemption to

the AWA licensure reguirement, when in fact the BAIRDS
then well knew that they were acquired through the use
cf straw men;

Said deliveries of the falsely certified dogs and cats
generated payments frem research facilities to C.C. BAIRD, JR.
d/b/a Martin Creek Kennels;

Such payments were sent and delivered by the United States
Posta. Service, and by private and commercial interstate

carriers, and received by C€.C. BAIRD, JR. d/b/a/ Martin Creek

Kennels and Patsy Baird.
The BAIRDS then utilized the preceeds of the mail Iraud

scheme constituting the specified unlawful activity described

herein to engage in financial trarnsactions greater than

9 C.F.R. § 2.101(a).




wnich vinlated Title 18, United States Code,

P i~ Pt e lal . T ~
313,000,052, each o©

Section 1957(a).

D. THE CCNSPIRACY

om on or agout January 1, 2001, to December 31, 2001, in

1]
o

erm District of Arkansas and slsewhere, and within the

rt
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v of the Ccurt, the defendant
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CHESTER CLINTON {(C.C.)} BAIRD, JR.
did knowingly conspire and agree with Patsy Baird, who is named
but not charged herein, to commit the following coffense against

[

-
[MRRE

Jriteda States: knowingly engaging in monrnetary transactions
in crirminally derived property of 2 value greater than $10,000.00
krnowing that the property involved was derived from specified
un’awiul activity, to wit, mail fraud, a vioclaticn of Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1341, wnich therefore viclated Title

18, United States Code, Secticon 1957 (a).

E. MANNER AND MEANS

Tne said unlawful conspiracy and agreement was to be and was

accompilisned by the following means and in the following manner:

1. It was a part of the ccnspiracy that the defendant C.C.

BAIRD, JR., and Patsy Baird, who is named put not charged herein,



sreated and caused to be created checking and investment accounts
managed by financial institutions located in the Eastern District
of Arkansas and elsewhere which were controlled directly and

indirectly by C.C. BAIRD, JR., and Patsy Baird;

2. It was further a part of the consplracy that proceeds

from the specified unlawful activity of mail fraud, as described

1

in Se2ction A above, C€.C. BAIRD, JR. and Patsy Baird consplired and

agreed to esngege in financial transacticns greater than

4y

10,30C.C0 by cdepositing and causing to be deposited said mail
fraud proceeds into, and transferring and causing to be
rransferred said proceeds among the checking, savings, and

investment accounts created and caused to be created by them.

All in wvioliation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956 (h) .
COUNT 2

MISPRISION OF A FELONY

From on cr about January 1, 2001, until about December 31,
2001, In rche Eastern District of Arkansas and elsewhere
PATSY M, BAIRD
having knowledge of the actual commission of a felony cognizable

by a court cf the United States, to wit, mail fraud, a violation

15



of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1341, by C.C. Baird,
Jr., who s narted but not charged herein, did conceal the same by

crtroni
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preparing falsz and fictitious paper and el
rezords intended to decelve and designed to misrepresent random
wrce dogs and cats under the Animal Welfare Act (AWA) Title 7,
United States Code (U.S.C.) &§ 2131 - 2159, and 9 Code of Federal

Regulations {(C.F.R.}) §§ 1.1 - 4.11, =Zhe regulations thereunder

from pronibited scurces, i.e. bunchers, as nonrandom source dogs
and cats bred and raised by the persons from whom they were

acguired and did not as soon as possible make Xnown the same o
some Sudge or other person In ¢ivil or military authority under

ne United States, all in wviolation of Title 18, United States

[N

Code, Section 4.

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION

Pursuant tc Title 18, United States Code, Section 982 (a) (1),

CHESTER CLINTON (C.C.) BAIRD, JR.
shall forfeit to the United States the following property:
211 rigaht, title and interest in any and all property
invclveae in the c¢ffense set forth in Count 1, a violatiocn of
Title 18, United States Code, Secticon 1856 for which the

defendant is ceonvicted, saild prowerty being:



Z 320C,0CC.C0

8. The Zcllowing described real progperty:
Tho Northwest Fractional Quarter (lefr bank of 3pring River! of
Secticn 31, Township 19 North, Range 2 West 124 acres, more or
‘ess, LESS AND EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING TRACT: A part of the North
Half of Section 31, Township 19 North, Range 3 West, being more
particularly described as follows: Starting at the West 1/16th
cocrner beatween Sections 30 and 31; thence Scuth along line 13
chains, 18 /4 links to the point of beginning; thence East 20
chains to the East side of the NE1/4 NWl1l/4; thence South along
forty line 6 chains, 81 3/4 links, (150 yards) to the Soutreast
cornar of the NEI/4 NW1l/4; then East along South side c¢f NWl1l/4
NZ1/4, 17 chains to Martin’s Creek; thence Scuth 30 degrees 24
mirnutes East along sald creekx 7 chains 48 links to North side of
SC. Legurs-Sarn rrancisco rallreoad right of way; thence along fence
NMorch B3 degrees 20 minutes West, 10 chains and 24 links; thence
centinuing around curve North 88 degrees West 21 chains 50 links;

thence with Zence South and West 14 chains; thence continuing
along fence south 51 degrees 33 minutes West 21 chains 50 links
to a point 50 feet East of Road crossing railroad right of way:
thence North 3 chains 53 iinks to South side of Highway Number 62
ard 63 as now lcocated; thence North 48 degrees and 46 minutes
Tast 2 chains and 11 links; thence continuing along East side of
Hignway North 39 degrees 15 minutes East 4 chains 3 links: thence
North 10 degrees 11 minutes FEast 9 chains 88 3/4 links; thence

East 3 chalns to point of beginning centainirg 4€.51 acres, more

or less

2 Soutnh Half of the Northwest Quarter; the North Half of the
sthwast Quarter of Secticen 9, Township 19 North, Range 3 West,
ss and except the following described land: Beginrning at the
rthwest corner of the Southwest Quarter ¢f the Northwest
arter cf said section Nine ({iron stake) thence South along said
rter secticon line 495 feet; thence Bast 495 fest thence North
feet =0 the guarter section line; thence West along quarter
tion line pack toc the point of beginning, said exception
taining > acres, more or less, and containing in the aggregate
acres, more oOr iess.

[ S IS e 3

2.0 0 T 0 3
030 (h oo
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Southeast quarter (321/4), 165.4 acres; the Scuthwest quarter
“/4} of the Northeast quarter (NE1/4) 41.3 acres; and that

of the Southeast quarter (SEL1/4) of the Northeast guarter
/4y (37.7 acres) lying West of Martins Creek containing in
aggregate Two hundred forty-four and four tenths acres (244.4
res) all lyirg in Section Eignt (8), Township Nineteen (297,
rzh, Range Three {(3) West,

(D
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The Z1/2 of Zhe SWi/4 cf Section §;

Part ¢f the NZ_/4 of the NEL/4 of Section 17, more particularly
doscriced as being all that part of Zorty lying West ¢I tne
Ccunty Road, contalning approximately 2 acres;

ParT of the NW1/4 of the NZ1/4 of Secticn 17, more particularly
described as folilows:

Seginning at the Northeast Corner of sald Quarter;

therce Soutrn on Forty line to where County Read intersects said
line;

thence with meandering of Ccunty Road to & point approximately 20
rods from the Scuth Line of said forty, and also to a private
rcad;

thence with meandering of said private rocad =o the West Line of
said forty to a point approximately 25 rods from the Scouth

Line oI sala Iorty;

~hence North with West forty line tc where Martin’'s Creek intexr-
sects said lirne;

thence Mortheast with meandering of Martin’s Creek to North Line;
thence zas: o point of beginning, containing appreximately 13
acres, more or less; and

Part of the NE1/4 of the NW.1/4 and

Part of the NW1/4 of the NEL/4 of Section 17, described as all
that part of said forty acre tracts lying on the West Side of
Martin’s Cresk, containrning 25 acres, more or less, all the above
described land irn Township 19 North, Range 3 West.

Zast Hdalf Northeast Fractional Quarter, Section 36, Township 19
Nerth, Rarge 4 West, except 50 acres cff the West Side of said
tract in the form ©f a paralielocgram.

The North Half of Section 31, Township 1% North, Range 3 West and
wne East Haif cf Secticen 36, Township 19 North, Range 4 Vest,
described as being all that land lying West of Martin’s Creek,
North of Spring River, East of a creek xnown as Garner Creek and
South of the St. Louis-San Francisco Railrcad. ALSO: a part of
Northeast Fractional Quarter, Section 31, Township 19 North,
Range 3 West, more particularly described as follows: Beginning
at the mouth of Martin’s Creek; thence West with meancering of
Spring River to West line of said Northeast Fractional Quarter;
thence North to South line of right-of-way of St. Louis-San
Frarncisco Railrcad as now lccated; thence East with said right-
of-way to West side of Martin’s Creek; thence Scuth to beginning
polnt, {ieft bank of river).

Comrencirng at the Northeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of
the Southeast Quarter of Secticn 36, Tewnsnip 19 Nerth, Range 4
West; thence Northesrly along the Zast line of szid Scuthwest

Quarter o7 the Northeast Quarter a distance of 163.5 feet to a

18



poinrt on the Scutherly right-cf-way line of Frisco Rallway
Company (saicd right of way being 220 feet in width, that is to
say 100 fzet cn Scuth and 120 feest on tne North of said Rallway
Company’s main tract center line as same s located and
corstructed as ¢ Jarnuary 20, 1972} ; <hence Southwesterly alicrg
said South railway Company’s right-of-way 1138 feet to point of
oeginning; thence 3Southeasterly at right angles a distance of 490
Feet; thernce Southwesterly at right angles a distance cf 120
feet; thance Nortnwesterly at right angles a distance of 30 feet
to a point 50 feet perpendicularly distant in a Southerly
directicn from sailid Railway Company’s main tract center line;

13
thence Northeasterly at right angles a distance of 120 feet;
~hence Southeasterly at right angles 50 feet to point of
Doginn*ng Contains 0.25 acre. Subject Zo easements and other
restrictions of record.

The Southwest QJuarter of the Scuthwest Quarter of Section 30,
Township 19 North, Range 3 West, LESS AND EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING: a
Part of the SW /4 SW 1/4 of Section 30, Township 18 North, Range
3 Wes%, described as follows: Beginning at NE cornexr of Swl/4
SW1/4 of sald Section, township and range, thence Scuth 330 feet;
thence West 100 feet to State dwy. #58; thence meandering with
said Hwy. No. #58, 330 feet; thence East 60 feet to point of
beginning.

The Southeast guarter, Scutheast quarter (SE 1/4 SE 1/4), Section
25, Township 192 North, Range 4 West

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE East Half of Section 36, Township
15 Nort“, Range 4 West, being more particularly described as
follows: Starting at the centerline of the Friscc-Railrocad and
“he center of railroad bridge No. 386 at Williford, Arkansas, and
golng South 3%° EBast for 50 feet to the Southeast Right-of-way
line of said railrcad for the point oI beginning in center of
creek ditch; tnence meandering down said creek South 66 2/2¢ East
for 85.1 feet; thence South 52 1/2¢ East for 391 feet; thence
South 5%c¢ Zast for 477 feet; thence South 86c 45' East for 632
fest; therce South 84 1/40 East for 59.5 feet to the intersection
of creek and Spring River; thence meanders down center of Spring
River North £60 45' East for 160 feet; thence North 40 1/2¢ East
for €3 feen; thence North 650 50' East for 522 fest; thence
North 3% 1/40 FEast for 102.8 feet to the East line of Section 36;
tharnze Norzh along sald East line for 496 feet tcoc the Northeas:t
corncr of the NE1/4 SEl/4 of Section 36; thence West along Nortn
line of saiag NE1/4 SE1/4 for 1,382 feest to the Ncrthwest carner
of said NE1/4 SEL/4; thence North 9 1/2¢ East alcng fence for 155
feet to the Southeast Right-of-way line the Frisce Railroad being
1C0 feect off the centerline of sald railroad at this point;

i



chernce Scuth Slo West along sald right-of-way line for 1,301.25

Sez7; thance Nortn 390 Hest for B0 feet —o the right-of-way line
Deing 33 IZeet ol the centerline of said rallroad a7t trnils point;
“hence Scutn S5ie West for 120 feet along said right-cfi-way back

To the point of beginning. This tract ¢f land ceontaining 4%.43

acres, more or less

211 In accordance with Title 18, United States Code, Section
982 (a) (1), ard Rule 32.2(a), Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.

BUD CUMMINS
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
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LINDA B. LIPE

ASSISTANT U.S., ATTORNEY
P. O. Box 12298

Little Rock, AR 72203
(501) 340-2600
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